

**BYLAWS
OF
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY**

THESE BYLAWS are for the regulation of Special District Risk Management Authority (the "Authority"). The definitions of terms used in these Bylaws shall be those definitions contained in the Sixth Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement relating to the Authority (the "Agreement"), supplements to such Agreement, and subsequent amendments to such Agreement, unless the context requires otherwise.

**ARTICLE I
MEMBERSHIP**

1. Eligibility

Any district, public agency, or public entity organized under the laws of the State of California, which is a member of the California Special Districts Association ("CSDA") is eligible for membership in the Authority upon approval by the Board of Directors of the Authority.

2. Participating Member

A "Member," as that term is used herein, is any public entity described in Section 1 above in the State of California whose participation in the Authority has been approved by the Board of Directors, and which (a) has executed the Joint Powers Agreement or successor document pursuant to which these Bylaws are adopted, and (b) which participates in a Joint Protection Program. Absent specific approval of the Board of Directors, all members shall at all times be a participant in either the Property/Liability Program or Workers' Compensation Program established by the Authority.

3. Successor Member Entity

Should any Member reorganize in accordance with the statutes of the State of California, the successor in interest, or successors in interest, if a member of CSDA, may be substituted as a Member upon approval by the Board of Directors of the Authority.

4. Annual Membership Meeting

An annual meeting of the members of the Authority shall be held at a time and place to be determined by the Board of Directors. The annual meeting shall be conducted in accordance with policies established by the Board of Directors. Each and every entity that is a Member of the Authority shall, no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to such meeting, be given written notice of the time and place of the meeting. The final agenda will be posted 72 hours prior to the meeting in the manner provided by the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code Section 54950 *et seq.*) (the "Brown Act"). The agenda shall include:

- a. Those matters which are intended to be presented for action by the Board of Directors;
- b. The general nature of any proposal to be presented for action; and
- c. Such other matters, if any, as may be expressly required by statute or by the Agreement.

**ARTICLE II
BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

1. Powers

Under the Agreement or successor document, the Authority is empowered to carry out all of its powers and functions through a Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have the powers set forth as follows, or as otherwise provided in the Agreement:

- a. to make and enter into contracts, including the power to accept the assignment of contracts or other obligations which relate to the purposes of the Authority, or which were entered into by a Member or Former Member prior to joining the Authority, and to make claims, acquire assets and incur liabilities;
- b. to incur debts, liabilities, or other obligations, including those which are not debts, liabilities or obligations of the Members or Former Members, or any of them;

- c. to charge and collect Contributions and Assessments from Members or Former Members for participation in Programs;
- d. to receive grants and donations of property, funds, services and other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations and governmental entities;
- e. to acquire, hold, lease or dispose of property, contributions and donations of property and other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations and governmental entities;
- f. to acquire, hold or dispose of funds, services, donations and other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations and governmental entities;
- g. to employ agents and employees, and/or to contract for such services;
- h. to incur debts, liabilities or other obligations to finance the Programs and any other powers available to the Authority under Article 2 or Article 4 of the Act;
- i. to enter into agreements for the creation of separate public entities and agencies pursuant to the Act;
- j. to sue and be sued in its own name; and
- k. to exercise all powers necessary and proper to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement (including the provision of all other appropriate ancillary coverages for the benefit of the Members or Former Members), or otherwise authorized by law or the Act.

2. Nomination of Directors

Members may nominate candidates to the Board of Directors in the following manner:

- a. A Member may place into nomination its candidate for any open position on the Board of Directors in accordance with election guidelines established by the Board of Directors.
- b. Each candidate for election as a director must be a member of the board of directors or a management employee of a Member (as determined by the Member's governing board). Only one representative from any Member may serve on the Board of Directors at the same time.
- c. Nominating forms must be completed and received by the Authority at least fifty (50) days before the date the election will occur.
- d. This nomination process shall be the sole method for placing candidates into nomination for the Board of Directors.

3. Terms of Directors

The composition of the Board shall be as set forth in the Agreement. The election of directors shall be held in each odd-numbered year. The terms of the directors elected by the Members will be staggered. Four directors will serve four-year terms, to end on December 31 of one odd-numbered year. Three directors will serve four-year terms, to end on December 31 of the alternate odd-numbered year.

The failure of a director to attend three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board (provided such meetings shall occur in a period of not less than three (3) successive months), except when prevented by sickness, or except when absent from the State with the prior consent of the Board, as provided by Government Code, Section 1770 shall cause such director's remaining term in office to be considered vacant. A successor director shall be selected for the duration of such director's term as set forth in Section 5 hereof.

4. Election of Directors

Members may vote for directors in accordance with the balloting process guidelines established herein or as otherwise established by policy of the Board of Directors. Each Member shall have one vote in the election per elected position.

The Board of Directors will conduct the election of directors to serve on the Board of Directors by all-mail ballot. Written notice shall be sent by mail to each Member no later than ninety (90) days prior to the date scheduled for such election. Said notice shall (i) inform each Member of the positions to be filled on the Board of Directors at such election; and (ii) inform each Member of its right to nominate candidates for any office to be filled at the election to Article II, Section 2 of the Bylaws. A form of mail ballot containing all mailed nominations accepted for any office to be filled at the election shall be mailed in accordance with policy established by the Board of Directors to each Member.

Said mailed ballot shall indicate that each Member may return the ballot to the principal business address of the Authority and that only those ballots received prior to the close of business on the date designated for the election shall be considered valid and counted.

5. Vacancy

Upon the death or resignation of any member of the elected Board of Directors, or the determination such member's remaining term is vacant pursuant to Section 3 hereof, the vacancy shall be filled for the balance of the unexpired term by appointment in accordance with policy established by the Board of Directors.

6. Meetings

The business of the Board of Directors shall be conducted and exercised only at a regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors held in accordance with law. Written notice of each meeting shall be given to each director of the Board by mail or other means of written communication, in the manner provided by the Brown Act. Such notice shall specify the place, the date, and the hour of such meeting.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors, for the purpose of taking any action permitted by statute and the Agreement, may be called at any time by the President, or by the Vice President in the absence or disability of the President, or by a majority of the members of the Board.

Any annual, regular, or special Board of Directors' meeting, whether or not a quorum is present, may be adjourned from time to time, as provided by the Brown Act.

Minutes of any and all open meetings shall be available to Members upon request and distributed by mail, electronically, or available on the Authority's MemberPlus on-line web portal.

7. Quorum and Required Vote

A quorum of the Board of Directors shall be a majority of the total number of directors. A quorum must be present at any meeting before the business of the Board of Directors can be transacted. The vote of a majority of the Board of Directors shall be required for any act or decision of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise specifically provided by law or the Agreement. The directors present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal from the meeting of enough directors to leave less than a quorum.

8. Expenses

Board members shall be reimbursed by the Authority in accordance with policy approved by the Board of Directors for all reasonable and necessary travel expenses when required or incurred by any director in connection with attendance at a meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof and for such other expenses as are approved by the Board. These expenses shall include, but shall not be limited to, all charges for meals, lodging, airfare, and the costs of travel by automobile at a rate per mile established by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE III
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

1. President, Vice President and Secretary

There shall be three officers of the Board: a president, a vice president and a secretary, who shall be members of the Board of Directors.

Election of officers shall be held at the first meeting following January 1 of each year, and each officer's term shall begin immediately thereafter, and shall end following adjournment of the first meeting following January 1 of the next year, or as soon thereafter as a successor is elected.

In the event the president, vice president or secretary so elected ceases to be a member of the Board of Directors, the resulting vacancy in the office shall be filled by election at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors after such vacancy occurs. The president or vice president may be removed, without cause, by the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting thereof, by a two-thirds vote of the voting members of the Board.

The president shall preside at and conduct all meetings of the Board of Directors, and shall carry out the resolutions and orders of the Board of Directors and shall exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board of Directors shall prescribe. The president shall be ex-officio a member of all standing committees, if any. In the absence of the president, the vice president shall carry out the duties of the president. The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, minutes of all meetings, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

2. Board Committees

Committees of the Board may be appointed in accordance with policy established by the Board of Directors, and membership on such committees may be open to non-members of the Board of Directors. Committees shall include at least one (1) member of the Board of Directors, but may not include a majority of the Board of Directors.

3. Chief Executive Officer

The Board shall appoint a Chief Executive Officer who shall have general administrative responsibility for the activities of the Authority. The Chief Executive Officer shall be paid by the Authority and is a contract position.

The Chief Executive Officer shall record or cause to be recorded, and shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office or such other place as the Executive Committee may order, a book of minutes of actions taken at all meetings of the Board of Directors, whether regular or special (and, if special, how authorized), the notice thereof given, the names of those present at the meetings, and the proceedings thereof. The Chief Executive Officer/ shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office of the Authority a list of all designated representatives and alternates of each Member. The Chief Executive Officer/ shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all the meetings of the Board of Directors required by the Bylaws or by statute to be given, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board, the Agreement or the Bylaws.

The Chief Executive Officer shall have the duty of administering the Programs of the Authority, as provided for in the Agreement, shall have direct supervisory control of and responsibility for the operation of the Authority including appointment of necessary employees thereof, subject to the approved budget and prior authorization of each position by the Board, and such other related duties as may be prescribed by the Board or elsewhere in these Bylaws or the Agreement.

4. Execution of Contracts

The Board may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, and such authorization may be general or confined to specific instances except as otherwise provided by these Bylaws or the Agreement. Unless so authorized by the Board, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Authority by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or to any amount.

5. Resignation

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the president or to the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority, without prejudice, however, to the rights, if any, of the Authority under any contract to which such officer is a party. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

ARTICLE IV
DESIGNATED ENTITY

The Lewiston Community Services District is hereby designated as the applicable entity for defining the restrictions upon the manner of exercising power as set forth in the California Government Code Section 6509, and as provided for in the Agreement of which these Bylaws are a part.

Should the Lewiston Community Services District terminate its membership or be involuntarily terminated in accordance with provisions of these Bylaws, the Board of Directors shall, by resolution, name a successor Member as the "designated entity" until such time as this Article can be amended.

ARTICLE V

JOINT PROTECTION PROGRAMS

1. Implementation of Joint Protection Programs

The Board of Directors may, at any time, offer such Programs as it may deem desirable. Such Program or Programs shall be offered on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may determine. Members must participate in at least one Joint Protection Program, but participation in any additional Programs or plans will be optional. Those Programs currently include: Property/Liability, Workers' Compensation, Health Benefits and various optional ancillary coverages. The Board of Directors shall establish the amount of Contributions, Estimated Contributions and Assessments, determine the amount of loss reserves, provide for the handling of claims, determine both the type and amount of insurance and/or reinsurance, if any, to be purchased, and otherwise establish the policies and procedures necessary to provide a particular Program for Members. As soon as feasible after development of the details of a Program, the specific rules and regulations for the implementation of such Program shall be adopted by the Board, which shall cause them to be set forth in written form in a policy and procedures manual prepared by the Authority for the Members.

2. Method of Calculating Contributions

The Board of Directors shall establish the method of calculating contributions for Members in each Program or plan annually.

ARTICLE VI

FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

1. Accounts and Records

The Authority shall establish and maintain such bank accounts and maintain such books and records as determined by the Board of Directors and as required by good accounting practice. Books and records of the Authority shall be open to inspection at all reasonable times by authorized representatives of Members. Periodically, but not less often than annually, financial reports shall be made available to all Members.

As provided in the Agreement, the funds, reserves and accounts of each Program shall not be commingled and shall be separately accounted for; provided, however, that administration and overhead expenses of the Authority not related to a specific Program or Programs may be allocated among Programs as determined by the Board of Directors.

2. Audit

The Authority shall obtain an annual audit of its financial statements, which audit shall be made by an independent certified public accountant and shall conform to generally accepted auditing standards. A copy of said audit report shall be available, upon request, to each of the Members. Such audit report shall be obtained and filed within six months after the end of the fiscal year under examination.

3. Annual Budget

Prior to the beginning of each Fiscal Year (or Program Year, as appropriate) the Board shall annually approve an operating budget for the Authority, including a budget for each Joint Protection Program.

4. Risk Sharing

a. Except as otherwise determined by the Board, all Programs established and/or operated under the Agreement or these Bylaws are intended to be risk-sharing programs. Notwithstanding this intention, and upon findings by the Board of Directors of the Authority that confirm the value thereof, the Board of Directors may recognize sound risk management and loss control by the members through contribution and coverage modifications.

b. The Board of directors authorizes the Chief Executive Officer to make adjustments to a member agency's specific deductibles, risk factor, experience modification factor or the coverage afforded based on:

- i. The Member's loss experience in comparison to the loss experience of the other members;
- ii. Non-compliance with SDRMA recommended risk management or loss control measures;
- iii. The Member's failure to allow SDRMA or its agents reasonable access to facilities and records in the event of a claim or a loss control inspection;

- iv. The Member's failure to cooperate with SDRMA's officers, agents, employees, attorneys and claim adjusters; or
- v. The Member's failure to honor any other reasonable request by SDRMA with respect to fulfilling the Member's responsibilities as outlined in Article 17 of the Joint Powers Agreement relating to the Authority.

5. Distribution of Net Position

Any Net Position from the operation of any Program, in such amounts and under such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board of Directors, may be distributed to the Members in such Program. Any distribution of such funds shall be made on a pro rata basis in relation to net contributions paid to that Program and shall be made only to those Members which participated in the Program during the Program Year in which the Net Position were generated. Such distributions may be made to Members based on the Program Year(s) during which the Member participated, even if the Member is not a Member at the time of the distribution.

6. Assessments

- a. If, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, claims against Members in any particular Program or plan for any particular Program Year are of such a magnitude as to endanger the ability of the Authority to continue to meet its obligations for that Program for that Program Year, each Member who has participated in that particular Program or plan of the Authority during the applicable Program Year shall be assessed a pro rata share of the additional amount determined necessary by the Board of Directors to restore the ability of the Authority to continue to meet its obligations for the applicable Program Year.
- b. Each Member's pro rata share of the total Assessment shall be in the same proportion as that Member's gross contributions paid during or due for the applicable Program Year bears to the total gross Contributions paid by or due from all Members during the applicable Program Year. In calculating these amounts, the Assessment shall not be included in gross Contributions.
- c. Failure of any Member to pay any regular Contribution or Assessment when due shall be cause for the involuntary termination of that entity's membership in the Authority. Such Assessment shall be a debt due by all Members who have participated in the applicable Program or plan during the applicable Program Year, and shall not be discharged by termination of membership.

7. Fiscal Year

The Authority shall operate on a fiscal year commencing on July 1 and ending on the following June 30. Such fiscal year shall also be the Program Year for any Member in any Joint Protection Program.

8. Agency Funds; No Loans

All funds received within a Joint Protection Program, as determined by the Board, for the purposes of the Authority shall be utilized solely for the purposes of such Joint Protection Program, and all expenditures of funds shall be made only upon signatures authorized by the Board of Directors, which shall establish the necessary procedures for doing so. Any funds not required for the immediate need of the Authority, as determined by the Board of Directors, may be invested in any manner authorized by law for the investment of funds of a special district.

Except for the allocation of administrative and overhead expenses, and for investment purposes as set forth in the Agreement, Program funds shall not be commingled and shall be separately accounted for.

The Board may not approve loans between Programs.

9. Grants and Donations

Without in any way limiting the powers otherwise provided for in the Agreement, these Bylaws, or by statute, the Authority shall have the power and authority to receive, accept, and utilize the services of personnel offered by any Member, or their representatives or agents; to receive, accept, and utilize property, real or personal, from any Member or its agents or representatives; and to receive, accept, expend, and disburse funds by contract or otherwise, for purposes consistent with the provisions of the Agreement, which funds may be provided by any Member, their agents, or representatives.

10. Recovery of Payment

In the event of any payment by the Authority, the Authority may on behalf of the Member, either in the name of the Authority, in the name of the Member or both, recover sums paid to or on behalf of the Member from any person or organization liable, legally, contractually or otherwise, and the Member shall execute and deliver such instruments and papers, and do whatever else is necessary including execution of an assignment of all claims, including all rights to recover attorney fees, to the Authority or to a third party at the Authority's request, to secure such recovery and shall do nothing to impair such recovery. All sums recovered shall be applied to reimburse the Authority for payments made to or on behalf of the Member, to reimburse the Authority for the expense of such recovery, and to reimburse the Member for any deductible or co-insurance penalty paid.

ARTICLE VII **WITHDRAWALS; TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP**

1. Withdrawal from Programs

A Member may voluntarily withdraw from any particular Program only in accordance with the applicable provision of the Agreement or any successor document thereto. A Member may withdraw from a Program without withdrawing from the Agreement if it is a participant in another Joint Protection Program of the Authority. Notice of intention to withdraw from a Program must be given to the Authority at least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the Program Year. No withdrawal shall become effective until the end of the applicable Program Year.

2. Involuntary Termination

Membership shall be deemed automatically terminated immediately and without prior notice upon the failure of any Member to maintain membership in at least one of the Authority's Programs.

In addition, a Member may be terminated from membership in a Program or the Agreement for cause upon a majority vote of the Board of Directors. The effective date of such termination shall be as determined by the Board of Directors, except that such termination shall take effect no later than sixty (60) days following the Board's decision to terminate and notice thereof is provided to the Member pursuant to Article VII, Section 3. For purposes of this Section, cause shall be deemed to include the following:

- a. Failure to pay any contribution, deposit, contribution to loss reserve, or assessment when due.
- b. Failure to comply with the Bylaws or with the policies and procedures established by the Authority.
- c. Based on a Member's loss experience, the Board of Directors has determined it to be detrimental to the stability of the pool.
- d. Dissolution of a Member.
- e. Failure to maintain membership in CSDA.
- f. Failure to undertake or continue risk management or loss control measures recommended by SDRMA or the Board of Directors.
- g. Failure to allow SDRMA or its agents reasonable access to all facilities and records of the Member which are necessary for the proper administration of a Program.
- h. Failure to cooperate fully with SDRMA officers, employees, attorneys, claims adjusters or other agents.
- i. Failure of a Member, the elected governing body of a Member, or of other personnel of the Member to exercise the Member's powers or fulfill the Member's duties in accordance with the Constitution or laws of the State of California.
- j. Any other act, omission or event, whether or not the fault of the Member, which causes the Member's continued membership in SDRMA to be inconsistent with the best interests of SDRMA or any of its programs.

3. Notification; Hearing, Obligations Upon Involuntary Termination

A Member which is automatically terminated on account of its failure to maintain membership in at least one of the Authority's Programs shall be given notice of such termination within thirty (30) days after such automatic termination. However, the failure to give such notice shall not operate to reinstate such Member.

In the event of a termination for cause by the Board of Directors, a Member may be terminated only after a written notice sent by certified or first class mail from the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority, stating the reasons for termination. Such notice shall provide the Member thirty (30) calendar days to cure the grounds for termination. The Member may request a hearing before the Board of Directors prior to the final termination of the Member's

membership in the Authority. The Chief Executive Officer of the Authority shall present the case for termination to the Board of Directors, and the Member shall have reasonable opportunity to present its case to the Board of Directors.

The decision by a majority of the Board of Directors to terminate a Member after notice and hearing or after the failure of the Member to cure the grounds given for termination shall be final and shall not be subject to appeal in any forum. The termination after notice and hearing shall take effect thirty (30) days after the decision to terminate is approved by the Board of Directors.

Any terminated Member shall continue to be bound to those same continuing obligations to which a withdrawing Member is obligated in accordance with Article VII, section 6 of these Bylaws.

4. Voluntary Withdrawal from Agreement

A Member may withdraw voluntarily only as provided in the Agreement. Notice of intention to withdraw from the Agreement must be given to the Authority at least 90 days prior to the end of the Program Year of any Program in which the Member participates at the time of the notice.

5. Payment Upon Termination of Membership

In the event of a termination of the membership of any Member by involuntary or voluntary termination, said Member shall thereafter be entitled to receive its pro rata share of any distribution of Net Position declared by the Board of Directors that pertains to a coverage year during which the terminated Member participated in any particular Program for which such distribution is made. Such payment shall be in full settlement and satisfaction of any and all claims that said terminated Member may have against the Authority.

6. Continued Liability

Upon withdrawal or involuntary termination of a Member, the Agreement shall not terminate and that Member shall continue to be responsible for any unpaid Contributions and for any Assessment(s) levied in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement or Bylaws. Such Member, by withdrawing or being involuntarily terminated, shall not be entitled to payment, return or refund of any Contribution, Assessment, consideration, or other property paid or donated by the Member to the Authority, or to return of any loss reserve contribution, or to any distribution of assets (except payment of any Net Position, as set forth in Article VII, section 5 above).

ARTICLE VIII

TERMINATION OF THE AUTHORITY; TERMINATION OF PROGRAMS

1. After having made proper provision for the winding up of the affairs of the Authority and each of the Programs operated by the Authority, the Authority shall distribute the net assets of the Authority as follows:
 - a. The net remaining assets of the Property/Liability Joint Protection Program shall be paid on a pro rata share basis to each Member who is a member of said Joint Protection Program at the time of termination of the Authority. A Member's pro rata share shall be in the same proportion as the total Contributions and Assessments paid by that Member to said Joint Protection Program or its predecessor in interest from its inception in 1986 and continuing throughout said Member's period of participation bears to the total Contributions and Assessments paid to said Joint Protection Program and its predecessors in interest during its period of operation by all members of said Joint Protection Program at the time of termination.
 - b. The Authority shall pay to each Member who is a member of the Workers' Compensation Coverage Joint Protection Program at the time of termination its pro rata share of the net remaining assets of said Joint Protection Program. A member's pro rata share shall be in the same proportion as the total Contributions and Assessments paid by that Member to said Joint Protection Program and its predecessor in interest offered by SDWCA, from its inception in 1982 and continuing throughout that Member's participation, bears to the total Contributions and Assessments paid to said Joint Protection Program and its predecessors in interest offered by SDWCA, during its period of operation by all members of said Joint Protection Program at the time of termination.
 - c. The Authority shall pay to each Member who is a member of any additional Program, excluding the Health Benefits Program operated by the Authority at the time of termination its pro rata share of the net remaining assets of said Program. A Member's pro rata share shall be in the same proportion as the total Contributions and

Assessments paid by that Member to such Program during its period of participation bears to the total Contributions and Assessments paid to that Program during its entire period of operation by all Members of that Program at the time of termination.

2. The Board of Directors is also vested with the power to terminate individual Programs operated by the Authority without terminating the Agreement or terminating the Authority. In the event of termination of a Program operated by the Authority, said Program shall continue to exist for the purpose of paying or making provision for the payment of all known claims arising within said Program; for insuring, reinsuring or making other provision for the payment of any and all unknown claims covered by such Program; for the payment of all debts, liabilities, administrative expenses, and obligations of that Program out of the assets of that Program; and to perform all other functions necessary to wind up the business affairs of that Program. After having made proper provisions for the winding up the business affairs of a terminated Program, the Authority shall pay to each Member who is a member of that Program at the time of termination its pro rata share of net remaining assets of that Program. A Member's pro rata share of the net remaining assets of each such terminated Program shall be computed as set forth in paragraph (1) above.
3. In lieu of terminating this Agreement, the Board, with the written consent of two-thirds of the existing Members, may elect to assign and transfer all of the Authority's rights, assets, claims, liabilities and obligations to a successor joint powers authority created under the Act.

ARTICLE IX **PROVISIONS RELATING TO CSDA**

1. Board of Directors; Alliance Executive Council

In the event the Alliance Executive Council MOU has been terminated or the Authority has withdrawn from the MOU, two (2) additional directors to be appointed by CSDA shall increase the composition of the Board of Directors. So long as the Authority is a participant in the MOU, the Board shall appoint three (3) members of the Board to serve as members of the Alliance Executive Council.

CSDA is authorized to appoint two (2) directors as provided in the Agreement, the terms of such appointed directors will end on December 31 of the alternate odd-numbered year to coincide with SDRMA's election of the minority number of directors.

Upon the death or resignation of a member of the Board of Directors appointed by CSDA, the vacancy shall be filled for the balance of the unexpired term by appointment by CSDA.

ARTICLE X **AMENDMENTS; EFFECTIVE DATE**

These Bylaws may be amended at any time by majority vote of the Board of Directors following a 30-day written notice to all Members as to the amendment(s) proposed to be adopted, except that these Bylaws cannot be amended in any way that would conflict with the terms and provisions of the Agreement or successor document and any amendment thereof. Said written notice provided to members shall include notification of the Board meeting date, time and location that action will be taken by the Board on the proposed amendments.

ARTICLE XI **PRIOR BYLAWS REVOKED**

When approved by the Board of Directors these Bylaws, upon coming effective pursuant to Article X will supersede and replace all prior bylaws.

* * * * *

AYES: 7
NOES: 0
ABSTAINED: 0
ABSENT: 0

Approved:


David Aranda, President - Board of Directors
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

May 5, 2016
Date

Attested:


Gregory S. Hall, ARM, Chief Executive Officer
SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY